
BOARD MEETING 
 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
April 18, 2019 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 
                                                                  

 
 



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 



BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees 

 

 

ITEM# / ACTION  Thursday, April 18, 2019 – ARVADA LIBRARY MEETING ROOM 

 

1.  Call to order & attendance (4.5.8) 

 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Action  Approve Agenda 

Call for motion and second 

 

4.    Action  Approval of Minutes  

Call for motion and second 

 March 14, 2019 Study Session Minutes 

 March 21, 2019 Board Meeting Minutes 

 

5.  Public Comment 

 

6.  Information   Foundation Report – Jo Schantz 

 

7. Operational 

Updates 

      Action as Needed 

 Executive Director Update 

 

 Finance and Budget  

 Financial Reports 

 Preliminary 2020 Budget Planning Calendar 

 

 Public Services 

 Belmar Schematic Design 

 Alternative Services 

 

 Facilities and Construction Projects  

 Carpet Cleaning Contract Amendment – Kleen Tech 

Call for motion and second 

 

8.  Action as Needed  Consent Agenda (4.3.4) 

 No items 

9.  Emerging Issues 

Action as Needed 

 

 

10.    Action as Needed  Ends 

 2020 Board Strategic Planning  

 

11.  Action as Needed  Governing Policies 

No items 

 

 



BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees 

 

 

12.  Suggest Agenda 

Items 

BOARD SCHEDULE – NEXT MEETINGS 

 May 9 – Study Session – 5:30 pm ‐ Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 May 16 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm ‐ Columbine Library Meeting Room 

 June 13 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 June 20 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Evergreen Library Meeting Room 

 July 11 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 July 18 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Golden Library Meeting Room 

 August 8 – Study Session – 5:30 pm Pam Nissler Administration Conference 

Room 

 August 15 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Standley Lake Library Meeting Room 

 

13.  Discussion  Board Questions or Comments Related to Items on the Meeting Agenda 

 

14.  Discussion  Evaluate Board Meeting (4.1.9) 

 

15.  Information 

 

   

Announcements/General Information Sharing 

 Report of the Chair – Correspondence, Other 

 Other Announcements 

 

 

16. Adjournment 

 

 

 



APPROVAL OF MINUTES  



 

Page 1 of 18 
 

Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees  

Extended Study Session 

March 14, 2019 – 4:00‐8:00 p.m. 

Administration Conference Room 

 

TOPICS:  

 2020 Strategic Planning 

 Financial Policies 

 Financial Review 

 Landscape Contract Information 

 

Call to Order 

The Study Session was called to order at 4:07 p.m. by Charles Naumer, Chair. 

 

Other Trustees present: Kim Johnson (Vice‐Chair), Pam Anderson (Secretary), John 

Bodnar, Deborah Deal and Brian DeLaet. 

 

Trustees not present: Jeanne Lomba. 

 

Staff present: Donna Walker, Executive Director; Julianne Rist, Director of Libraries; 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects; Bernadette Berger, 

Director of Information Technology; Barbara Long, Assistant Director of Finance and 

Budget; Rebecca Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement; Sandie Coutts, 

Director of People and Culture; Lizzie Gall, Assistant Director of Library Programs and 

Services; Padma Polepeddi, Assistant Director of Library Programs and Services; and 

Amber Fisher, Executive Assistant, Office of the Executive Director. 

 

Guest Facilitator: Mark Leyba, Jefferson County Organizational Readiness Manager 

 

Introduction and Icebreaker 

What have you heard recently from the community about the library? 

 From a student, “I use it as a way to set aside time dedicated to studying because if I 

stay at home I get too distracted.” 

 I continue to hear people say you should do this – and I’m thinking we’ve been 

doing that for 20 years. 

 I’m very connected to how our families use the library – and how our teens would 

like to use the library. In my book club, every single woman in that club uses the 

library to get their books. There are groups that use the library regularly. 

 Kids and seniors. People in Evergreen love everything about the Evergreen library. 

People ask, what’s going to happen with libraries – what will they look like in the 

next 10‐20 years.  



 

Page 2 of 18 
 

 The library – multi service provision – family member who is a senior and strong 

supporter of the library system – extremely active in support – but not sure if she 

ever uses the library even though she is an avid reader and consumer of information 

– getting them in the doors is the secret.  

 I am active in the manufacturing and business sector Jeffco. I hear people – wish that 

there were more adult programs.  

 I am hearing about the homeless situation.  The Arvada Chamber is having a 

meeting on homelessness – hope to approach from many points and get a handle on 

it. 

 

Review Objectives and Outcomes and Agenda 
Objectives: 

 Trustees contribute to 2020 Strategic Planning 
 

 Trustees are given an opportunity to reflect on strategic inputs and other data points 
 

 Trustees explore impacts of changes to Ends statements 
 

Outcomes: 

 Executive director has heard from the BOT so 2020 strategic planning can begin 
 

 New ends are understood and incorporated into 2020 vision 

 

Strategic Planning Timeline and Budget Milestones 

The Chair introduced the topic and reviewed the timeline and background of the 

Board’s strategic planning milestones.   

 2016: Modified bylaws to include a place for the Board to participate in strategic 

planning – very thoughtful in how we would work together. 

 2017: Started to develop a plan for Board involvement including recognition of 

measures. 

 2018: Evaluated Ends Statements and conducted a survey.  There was recognition 

that the Board was not putting enough time into reflecting on the ends  

o April – Started the process of strategic planning visioning 

o May – Developed a plan for moving forward 

o June – Board consensus on map to move forward 

o August – Discussion on who is our targeted audience 

o September – Reviewed the Aspen Report 

o October – Focused on measuring what matters – metrics 

o November – Ends statements review 

o December – Finalized ends statements 

 2019: January – Adoption of new Ends Statements 

 2019: March – December: Budget and other planning milestones were reviewed. 

 



 

Page 3 of 18 
 

The Board had no questions about or additions to the timeline. 

 

The Executive Director addressed the Board and noted that this is the first time the 

Board and Executive Team are meeting to work together on strategic planning.  The 

goals is to create a precedent for future years and determine the best process for moving 

forward.  The data in the information packet is streamlined and there is additional 

information included that is not reflected on the agenda.  That information has been 

presented previously.  The focus today will be on new information. 

 

2019 Community Inputs Presentation  

Rebecca Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement, presented information on the 

community input initiative.  JCPL’s services start with a deep understanding of the 

communities we serve and this information will help us in our long range planning.   

 

Purpose and Goals 

The purpose of the community input meetings was to introduce Donna Walker as the 

new Executive Director; build relationships with key stakeholders; learn about our 

communities’ aspirations and challenges; and learn how stakeholders measure the 

value of the Library and how they expect the Library to help. 

 

Logistics and Approach 

The Library hired Government Performance Solutions (GPS) to help facilitate the 

community input sessions, including six meetings over the course of four weeks with 96 

participants from key stakeholder groups. These included: 

 Volunteers 

 Business, Chambers of Commerce, and Economic and Workforce Development 

 Faith‐based and Health and Human Services 

 Mayors, City Managers and Foundation Contacts 

 Early Literacy and Education 

 Elected and Other County Officials 

After introductions, participants were organized into breakout groups of five to seven 

to maximize participation.  Topics for discussion centered on the following four 

questions:    

1. What are your aspirations for your community?   

2. What challenges does your community face in reaching these aspirations? 

3. How can the Library help?  

4. How will we know the Library is being successful in supporting community 

aspirations? 

GPS encouraged each breakout group to identify a volunteer facilitator to develop 

consensus themes from the discussions. Participants recorded their own responses on 



 

Page 4 of 18 
 

sticky notes, and then shared them with the group. Facilitators helped the groups 

identify common elements, issues or themes.  GPS then asked facilitators to summarize 

these themes and seek validation from the group.  Both individual responses and 

consensus themes were captured.  

 

The number of individual and consensus responses across all six groups were tracked 

to identify and prioritize community inputs for each of the four questions. The results 

were presented in key highlights.  

 

Question 1: What are your aspirations for your community? 

Many shared a vision of safe, sustainable, thriving communities with equal access to: 

 Early Learning/Education 

 Community  Engagement 

 Economic Development/Jobs/Commerce 

 Affordable Housing 

 Spaces to get together, including free and flexible meeting spaces 

 Information re: resources and issues 

 Community Identity and Pride 

 Arts and cultural enrichment 

 Access to healthcare and other resources 

 Health and Healthcare  

 Sustainability 

 Economic Security 

 Transportation 

 Services to Seniors 

The following emerged as top priorities with strong consensus: 

 Early Literacy and Education – there is broad recognition of the critical role literacy 

and education play in supporting a community’s aspirations.  

 Diverse, Inclusive Communities, with equal opportunities for all ‐ a deeply held 

community value.  

 Engaged and Connected Communities ‐ People are looking for ways to connect 

with others in their neighborhoods and communities.   

 Leadership/Shared Vision/Collaboration ‐ People seek a community united by a 

shared vision and collaborative approach to problem solving.   

 Economic Development/Commerce ‐ Participants value small business 

development and economic‐opportunities.   

 Safety ‐ People want safe communities where everyone is respected and valued.  

 

Question 2: What challenges does your community face in reaching these aspirations? 



 

Page 5 of 18 
 

There were plenty of challenges to achieving their aspirations, ranging from 

divisiveness in civic discourse to economic disparity. Every aspiration brought its own 

challenges. Following are the key themes 

 Community Engagement/Feeling Connected – People are feeling disconnected 

from each other and their communities. There is a trend toward social isolation for 

many residents.  

 Diversity and Inclusion, while highly valued, bring challenges. Changing 

demographics, growing economic, wage disparity and the current political 

environment are contributing to an atmosphere of fear and divisiveness and a lack 

of civility in common discourse.   

 Information about/access to community information – It is harder and harder to 

deliver information and create broad awareness of community issues, resources and 

services (including the Library’s) to Jeffco residents.  

 Resource Constraints ‐ Lack of time & funding topped the list. Staffing/volunteers, 

transportation & affordable housing were also cited.   

 Shared Vision and Collaboration – People feel there is a leadership void in creating 

a shared vision for our communities. As a result, people live and work in silos.  

 

Question 3: How can the Library help? 

Many shared a traditional view of the Library providing resources and support, 

including (in priority order): 

• Programs/classes/discussion groups 

• Resources for early learning and education 
• Technology and innovation 
• Free and flexible meeting spaces 

• Information about and access to community resources and services 

• Events (concerts, fairs, etc.) 
• Arts and Cultural Enrichment 

• Support for economic development 

• Books, movies, music 

  

In addition, the following themes stood out: 

 Community Engagement/Connection – there was huge demand for this. 

Stakeholders are looking for the Library to be more than just a collection of physical 

and digital resources. They are looking for leadership to enable connections with 

others. Folks felt the Library could and should offer programs that give folks a 

change to engage, connect, discuss controversial issues, explore cultural differences, 

learn about each other, etc. They also felt there was a role for the Library out in the 

community, through enhanced outreach and collaboration with other community 

groups and services.  



 

Page 6 of 18 
 

 Safe Place/Community Hub ‐ while people cited traditional Library resources – we 

saw far greater demand for a safe place where community members can come 

together to connect and engage.   

 Diversity and Inclusion – The Library is seen as a powerful model and advocate for 

diversity and inclusion. It is seen as a trusted, neutral space where everyone is 

welcome, can come together, and feel at home.   

 Shared Vision/Collaboration/Library as Convener – People felt the Library could 

play a leading role in establishing strategic partnerships and convening collaborative 

management initiatives to support community aspirations  

 Information about/access to resources – This was a clear request – not only more 

information about Library services, but information and access to other community 

resources as well 

 

Question 4: How will we know the Library is being successful in supporting 

community aspirations? 

When we asked how we could demonstrate success, answers ranged from usage data, 

to more qualitative inputs, to seeing how the library helped people grow and change. 

Following are the key themes:  

 Usage Statistics – people cited many of the measures we currently track 

(cardholders, library visits, web visits, circulation, program participation, meeting 

room use, communications effectiveness, etc. They also suggested we track use of 

the library by new and more diverse populations. 

 Surveys, Focus Groups, Intercept Surveys – these were offered as ways to get to 

patron awareness and satisfaction, as well as how they value the Library. 

 “BUZZ” – We’ll know we’re being successful when people are talking about the 

library and recommending it to others. 

 Community Support – Funding, advocacy and participation are other measures of 

success. 

 Programs/Partnerships – Folks suggested we track growth in strategic partnerships 

and their effect (via agency relationships, referrals and meeting measurable 

objectives). 

 Outcomes – a smaller subset suggested we track growth in individuals, or how they 

were changed by the Library 

 

A participant sent the following message after they attended a community input 

meeting: 

“I was honored to be part of the JCPL community feedback forum at ARC on Jan. 

9. Some great concepts came out of our discussions.  We got very excited about 

the libraryʹs potential to alleviate social problems, which is an important new 

direction in troubled times. However, I wondered afterward if we had said 

enough about the importance of the library materials themselves (books, 



 

Page 7 of 18 
 

periodicals, CDs, DVDs, computers). Keeping those materials current and 

available requires a huge amount of labor and funding and is crucial to our 

culture and our democracy. I think the feedback groups took for granted that 

that would be a priority along with community programming, but I thought Iʹd 

put it in writing! Iʹm grateful to you and the library staff for all you do.” 

 

Summary 

The Library is having a moment. They see us as more than a resource for information – 

they see us as active participants – leaders, even – in convening people and 

conversations, working with others to address challenges, and proactively helping them 

meet their aspirations. 

 

2019 Community Inputs Discussion 

The Board participated in a micro‐reflection activity and focused on two questions: 

(1) What stood out to you? (2) What thoughts and feelings arose? 

 

The Board reviewed the responses and determined the following common themes: 

 Safety 

 Scope of mission (creep?) 

 Community connections 

 Diversity 

 Outcomes 

 

The Board engaged in a discussion. Some of the comments included: 

 Safe space – from who – for who 

 Connection resonates with me – prioritize that connection 

 Knowledge is power – keep the access to knowledge a priority 

 What is the best way to measure, etc.? 

 Books and materials assumed or not the priority 

 Concerned that people are expecting the library to take on everything – take on too 

much – we have a core role to play – but are we supposed to be mental health center 

for the county too 

 Measureable goals – based on our group – we’d have several different ways to 

measure – still hard to define for me 

 Partnership for the social values mission – don’t lose focus of our primary mission – 

partner with other agencies that have the social value mission – would have concern 

– don’t want to be reactive to concerns or issues – weighting our mission to a 

qualitative social mission 

 Desire for the library to take the lead – in tough community discussions 



 

Page 8 of 18 
 

 Should we phrase questions differently – what is important to the community in 

terms of that – materials? If we made this type of alternative service available to you 

– would that be of interest to you. 

 Library as leader – why, how, facilitate or lead 

 Like the idea of library partnerships with other organizations – we need to do that 

 The number of times diversity or inclusivity – don’t see that ‐  

 Spoke to silos – think this feedback is community inside baseball people vs. the user 

data – more for our strategy – less user driven and more their own experience ‐ 

driven in their professional life/personal life – curious how that connects to our user 

data – not seeing the connection 

 Repetition of inclusion and diversity – doesn’t mean the same thing to everyone –  

 Safety came up a lot – what is at the root of that concern – library makes sure they 

are very welcoming – why does that safety issue come up 

 Safe space for debate – sounds good but difficult to execute 

 Fine line – library trying to take on too much – should be information resources – 

they want the library to solve all these other problems and we can’t – we can do a 

few things good – so where do we draw the line 

 Actually, do see a role for facilitating civic discourse – a lot of disinformation and 

misinformation out there and the library is a reliable source of good information. 

Facilitate it – there are professionals that can do that very well. If people are feeling 

distrustful of all this information 

 We talk about the library being a leader in the community – and the question is what 

does that mean –  

 Also, feel that from some of their input – I immediately went to – well the library 

does that to meet that. I am curious – safety is already in our strategic plan and 

connection is already in our strategic plan.  When we think about our next strategic 

plan – how do we seek strategies to more fully connect with our communities 

 All the information really relevant to strategic planning – useful to help us advance 

the conversation 

 The community expects us to be everywhere and do everything – we’re doing a lot 

of these things already  

 This is a conversation about – if all things were possible – it’s more aspirational  

 They are transferring their needs to us – not solve the problem but give the 

information 

 We can’t solve everything – we can’t do everything – we can make that information 

available 

 To me the library wasn’t the lead – but could facilitate – we have materials to 

support – don’t know if it is our goal 

 One that stood out – what would mean we’re successful – one of them was you get 

resources to do what you need to do – I think we’re still in that building our 

resources phase 



 

Page 9 of 18 
 

 

 

 

The Executive Director spoke to the methodology around the input meetings.  The 

Library invited thought leaders, a representative group of people across the political 

spectrum, and asked them aspirational questions about their communities. In addition, 

no matter what they believed politically, they shared many of the same aspirations. 

 

The Chair noted that the Library has limited resources – how do we best use those – 

what are we going to focus on as the highest priority for those resources – it’s a great 

place to start strategic planning. 

 

Trends Insights 

The Trustees were divided into teams to review the trends in libraries and share 

insights. 

 

Community Impact: Libraries are using community goals to shape services and lead 

community policy‐making to support those goals 
 Creating spaces and reasons for people to connect across generations and cultures 

 Library as a supporter of the well‐being of the community 

 Access to books and materials is a given 

 Importance and extent of Library contribution to early literacy and business support is 

building 

 Expectation that the Library transcends social issues; we hold the center 

Board Team Insights 

Know 

What is important to know 

about this trend and how it 

could impact the library? 

Feel 

What feelings come up for 

you when you think about 

this trend and the potential 

impact it could have? 

Do 

Considering what you know 

and how you feel about this 

trend, what actions should be 

considered in addressing its 

potential impact on the 

library? 

 More than books and 

materials 

 Community wants a 

physical place for 

connection 

 Libraries integral to 

economic, social, civil 

health and business 

 That’s a lot – is my 

immediate feeling 

 And – we are doing it 

 Community input 

validates strategic 

plan/goals. 

 Support the ends 

statements – continue 

 Communicate with 

partners – ends 

statements – program 

potential 

 Communicate 

opportunities 

 

 



 

Page 10 of 18 
 

 

 

Community Engagement: Competition for attention is fierce 
 People expect us to keep their data private and also to use it to customize their service 

 Proliferation of communication channels  

 Expectation of collaboration and partnership with other community agencies 

 More meaningful volunteer opportunities for more types of people 

Board Team Insights 

Know 

What is important to know 

about this trend and how it 

could impact the library? 

Feel 

What feelings come up for 

you when you think about 

this trend and the potential 

impact it could have? 

Do 

Considering what you know 

and how you feel about this 

trend, what actions should be 

considered in addressing its 

potential impact on the 

library? 

 Conflicting desires – how 

is personal data kept 

secure 

 What is the cost of 

keeping data 

 What channels should we 

employ 

 What do other entities 

offer 

 What type of volunteers 

do we have 

 Conflicting desires – data 

security and 

customization 

 Fear of disclosure 

 Understand existing 

volunteer motivations 

 Understand potential 

volunteer desires 

 List of existing 

collaborations and what 

library does 

 Campaign to make 

patrons aware of our data 

security efforts 

 

Library Services: Do more and do it for everyone – and maybe do it outside 
 Equity, Diversity and Inclusion ‐ Everyone is welcome 

 We are the connector to resources and opportunities to learn 

 Fewer barriers; more convenience 

 Greater emphasis on programs 

 Ahead of the technology curve with access to devices and maker culture 

 More outside – outreach, outdoors 

 My device, my way 

 Mental health support 

Board Team Insights 

Know 

What is important to know 

about this trend and how it 

could impact the library? 

Feel 

What feelings come up for 

you when you think about 

this trend and the potential 

impact it could have? 

Do 

Considering what you know 

and how you feel about this 

trend, what actions should be 

considered in addressing its 



 

Page 11 of 18 
 

potential impact on the 

library? 

 What are the potential 

services available outside 

of the library 

 What services are other 

libraries offering that we 

are not 

 Demand – user interest in 

potential services and 

what current services are 

maxed out 

 What are the barriers 

 Improved connectivity to 

other organizations and 

efforts has huge potential. 

Excitement. 

 Desire to understand the 

interaction between 

community and services. 

 Opportunity 

 Concern about how you 

learn what the barriers 

are 

 Continue to seek 

feedback – qualitative on 

current services 

 Seek interest in possible 

services – measure in a 

quantitative manner 

 Share other potential 

services with the Board 

 

Workforce: Library workforce is expected to reflect the demographics 

 of the community 
 Five generations at work, Millennials largest group in workforce 

 Expectation of a healthy and safe work environment 

 Growing importance of staff and leadership development 

 Changing labor market 

 Regulatory uncertainty 

Board Team Insights 

Know 

What is important to know 

about this trend and how it 

could impact the library? 

Feel 

What feelings come up for 

you when you think about 

this trend and the potential 

impact it could have? 

Do 

Considering what you know 

and how you feel about this 

trend, what actions should be 

considered in addressing its 

potential impact on the 

library? 

 How to attract and retain 

diverse talent 

 What development 

opportunities are there 

and what is the need 

 Desire for the best staff 

 Fear of not having right 

balance of workforce 

 Continue to focus on best 

practices 

 Participation in job fairs 

and internship 

opportunities 

 

Facilities: Designing space for people first, materials next 
 Be a 3rd Place people can go hang out, meet up, or just be 

 Flexible space and let people see the fun going on inside 

 Convenient access 

 Outdoor spaces 

 Be Green 

 Be Safe 



 

Page 12 of 18 
 

 Go beyond ADA to universal accessibility

Board Team Insights 

Know 

What is important to know 

about this trend and how it 

could impact the library? 

Feel 

What feelings come up for 

you when you think about 

this trend and the potential 

impact it could have? 

Do 

Considering what you know 

and how you feel about this 

trend, what actions should be 

considered in addressing its 

potential impact on the 

library? 

 What do our local 

communities want? Do 

we share the possibilities 

 What does safety mean 

 How do facilities connect 

to the services trends 

 Cost – the increased need 

for space to meet the 3rd 

place trend and flexible 

space trend 

 Concern over getting it 

wrong 

 Concern over quickly 

changing trends 

 Constant facilities 

planning review 

 Review long‐term 

sustainability 

 

Stewardship: Don’t duplicate effort
 Evidence‐based decision‐making 

 Long‐range planning 

 Collaborative management 

 Focus on outcomes 

Board Team Insights 

Know 

What is important to know 

about this trend and how it 

could impact the library? 

Feel 

What feelings come up for 

you when you think about 

this trend and the potential 

impact it could have? 

Do 

Considering what you know 

and how you feel about this 

trend, what actions should be 

considered in addressing its 

potential impact on the 

library? 

 Evidence 

 Data 

 Continue to survey 

 Validation to investors 

 Investment in community

 Maintenance/longevity 

 Something lasting ‐

impact 

 Continue communication 

of strategy and ends 

statements 

 Share to thought leaders 

and users 

 

New Board Ends 

In January, the Board adopted new Ends Statements that will become effective in 

January 2020 and need to be considered during 2020 Strategic Planning. A review and 

discussion of the impact followed.  

 



 

Page 13 of 18 
 

Current Statement  Moving From –  

Moving To 

New Statement 

Ends Statement 1: 

All Jefferson County 

residents have equal 

opportunity to access 

information, resources, 

ideas and technology, and 

they are supported in 

using these resources. 

No Change 

 Still Applies 

 Important 

 First One 

Ends Statement 1: 

All Jefferson County 

residents have equal 

opportunity to access 

information, resources, 

ideas and technology, and 

they are supported in 

using these resources. 

 

Ends Statement 2: 

All Jefferson County 

residents have safe, 

convenient and inviting 

places to go to access 

information and resources 

and participate in 

community life. 

Moving from: 

 Inviting 

 

Moving to: 

 Radically Welcoming 

 Inclusive 

 Attention Getting 

 Feeling Safer 

Ends Statement 2: 

All Jefferson County 

residents have safe, 

convenient, and radically 

welcoming places to go to 

access information and 

resources and participate 

in community life. 

 

Ends Statement 3: 

Jefferson County will 

thrive as the library 

understands and supports 

community aspirations 

with the goal of advancing 

positive community 

outcomes 

 

Moving from: 

 More assessment 

 

Moving to: 

 More active 

 More ownership of 

what we can do 

 Create more value 

Ends Statement 3: 

Jefferson County Public 

Library adds value to the 

community by providing 

leading‐edge services that 

advance our common 

goals. 

 

Ends Statement 4: 

All Jefferson County 

residents receive 

maximum return on their 

shared investment in 

library services. 

Moving to: 

 Deeper explanation 

 More ownership 

 More accountability 

 Efficiency is important 

 

 

Ends Statement 4: 

JCPL maximizes return on 

shared investment by 

delivering services of the 

greatest possible value to 

Jefferson County residents 

through effective and 

efficient use of our 

resources. 

 

 

 



 

Page 14 of 18 
 

 

Wrap Up 

The Board was asked if the objectives and outcomes for the extended study session had 

been met.  The facilitator acknowledged that the second outcome was not fully 

accomplished. The Board indicated that they were satisfied with the progress toward 

the second objective.  

 

The Executive Director addressed the Board and asked for feedback on the information 

packet.  Specifically, if the information provided was enough, or not enough.  The 

Board responded that the level of information was perfect for the discussion and kept at 

a high‐level.   

 

The Trustees made the following comments on the extended study session, moving 

forward and continuing strategic planning discussions: 

 I will have more questions when we have the 5 year capital discussion – that is 

the piece that the Board should have involvement with and discussion (is this the 

right order of facilities, etc.) 

 Is the Master Facilities Plan still our path?  When looking at the summaries ‐ 

there is not strong desire to deviate from the long‐term plan – not looking at it 

and saying it is not in alignment with our ends – nothing screams out to me – we 

are not going to make major changes – for me. 

 Miniscule tweaking 

 Hope it does not come to us 100% done. I want facilities to come with something 

that has some options. 

 I’d like to see things like alternative service delivery – looking at those types of 

things when we look at the facilities schedule 

 It was a very collegial meeting and I appreciated getting us out of our comfort 

zone 

 Felt good coming into the meeting – feel good now 

 I do think it was very helpful to make sure we have a consensus on what the new 

ends statements mean. 

 Appreciate the Executive Director’s contribution to getting us back to the focus of 

what input the Library is trying to get from us. 

 

The Executive Director thanked the Trustees and noted that the next level of strategic 

planning and decision‐making is reaching alignment on where we are heading and 

what we do next to get there.  The Executive Team understands and appreciates the 

Board’s input and will have recommendations and let the Board know the options. 

 

The Chair advised the Board that the next action is working on how to continue the 

conversation so the Board feels engaged in strategic planning. 



 

Page 15 of 18 
 

 

Financial Policies 

Kim Johnson, Vice‐Chair, introduced the topic and addressed the proposed fund 

balance policy dated March 2019, which provides clarity and definitions for the fund 

balance, the available fund balance and the fund balance review at the end of the fiscal 

year.  The Vice‐Chair indicated that there is a timeline to address below minimum fund 

balance levels, but no timeline to address above maximum fund balance levels.  A 

possible timeline to address above maximum situations would be two years as one year 

is too quick and five years is too long.   

 

There was a wide‐ranging discussion including the following: 

 The trend is resources are increasing – now we’re budgeting to we can spend what 

we want – we’re holding on to half of our budget – it’s not ours – it could be in the 

community doing something else – it could be in the taxpayers’ pocket. 

 The clarity is what is the fund balance and what is the available fund balance. This is 

important – the plan is already to spend down the fund balance – for Belmar next 

year – that is not money that is in the available fund balance – we are going to spend 

that.  If you already have a plan to spend it down – which we do – that answers that 

question.  

 The timeline to correct the maximum – do we want to see us on three years in and 

yeah, we are still over our fund balance.   

 Doesn’t the budget process handle that  

 

Barbara Long, Assistant Director of Finance and Budget, addressed the Board and noted 

that the reason the Library proposed this change is because most organizations do not 

have a fund balance policy, they have a reserve policy.  You cannot really count funds 

that are already committed; you need to look at the available funds.  The amounts you 

subtract are things like the sinking fund for the bookmobile, funds for South County 

and at the end of the year; we have capital project funds that we know we will continue 

and carryover.  Instead of looking at the grand total – look at the available fund balance.  

If you look at that – it is less than 50% in 2018 and has been less in every other year. 

The current resolution is to spend on capital projects – the fact that the capital plan is in 

place does mean we are going to spend it down.  The recommendation is to redefine it 

as available fund balance that is more consistent with governance practices.  You 

measure the funding that is actually available.  There may be a need to save up for a 

capital project for a long term. If you see the available balance going over the maximum, 

you could establish a sinking fund for another capital project and expect it to become a 

part of long term budget planning.  This could be addressed as the normal budget 

process in the capital plan. 

 

There was additional discussion and comments including: 



 

Page 16 of 18 
 

 I would support making these changes to the policy.  Also have a discussion on a 

reserve account – and does that come back to another maximum – this takes us a 

step in the right direction. 

 I thought we had another account we were putting money into ‐ right now it 

appears we are trying to dip into – 50% is a lot.   

 We need to redefine as available. 

 I’m less concerned about the maximum 

 We are at the 50% because if you look at the plan, after South County, we are at 28% 

or barely above our minimum. 

 Available fund balance speaks to what is available after capital projects. 

 How can we make sure we are making the best use of taxpayer funds and not a 

treasure chest.  If we need to redefine so that we are not saying we have too much 

money in there when we are really saving for big capital projects. 

 I am less concerned with the maximum than with the minimum. 

 We also need to consider capacity for some of these goals; the Library has been very 

conservative. 

 In terms of language and to change to available fund balance – and what happens if 

we go over it – do we feel we should add that language too? 

 I do not want to bind a future board – want to see us use more of that balance – it is 

a lot of money to hold on to. When we enacted this, we were given some data on 

what government agencies do. It has not set well with me that we hold on to this 

money. 

 I think it is important to have the maximum statement in there – and even if future 

boards decide to change it – in the interest of continuing to make sure were being 

fiscally responsible – I like the idea of having the maximum clause in there – this is 

the kind of discussion we need to have. 

 Are we proposing that we change the policy to define the available fund balance and 

potentially including the language for going over?  If we do that – we may not have 

this issue going forward. Do we want to have a revision of the policy that we could 

vote on at the next meeting?  

 If we are going to do that – the percentage should change – moved downward ‐  I 

would rather set the mills at 4.0. 

 I would rather have a lower mill – but I want to build South County debt free.  We 

need to clarify that these projects fall into the sinking fund category.  Barbara is right 

other organizations do not have a maximum policy. 

 We could do eight sinking funds for eight projects and have a 25% ‐ it’s been the 

trend to not dip into the fund balance and do projects with mills – and then we have 

carry overs and it really comes down to what the Board feels – I didn’t get on this 

board to do what everybody else does. 

 That 50% limit may be for future boards – or we may decide to lower it for future 

boards. 



 

Page 17 of 18 
 

 Would it be a better approach to put a hold on this amendment until we have our 

budget discussion – so we can look at this after we have looked at our 5 year budget 

‐ capital plan. 

 I do not think we have typically had an annual budget conversation at the same time 

we have had the 5‐10 year capital plan referenced. We need to have the bigger 

conversation. 

 We are also hearing revenue projections are changing – it is appropriate in the 

context of what we are doing – we should look at what our priorities are before we 

amend the policy. 

 

Barbara Long noted that the minimum level is industry standard at 25% or three 

months correlated to financial health and ability to respond.  It is less common to have a 

maximum level.  The capital plan is important, it gives us constraints. When we did our 

5‐year and 10‐year plan, our fund balance was in the negative.  It is a forecast – looking 

at the capital projects that are a priority to fund is a good place to start in terms of 

building those constraints.  Then looking at next year’s budget in terms of operations.  It 

is a good idea – and gives more comfort – to plug in the big rocks for capital and the 

things we have planned. This fund balance is a guideline – we use it in financial 

planning – we do not want to dip down below 25% ‐ we do not want to go too high and 

fund what we do not have to.  

 

The Chair addressed the Board, noted that there is no emergency with the proposed 

policy amendments, and agreed that the best approach would be to review it with the 

capital plan. 

 

Financial Review 

There were no questions from the Board 

 

Landscape Contract Information 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects, addressed the Board and 

presented information on the Library’s landscape contract.  Last year, the Library Board 

of  Trustees  authorized  the  Executive  Director  to  sign  a  one‐year  contract  with 

Environmental Designs, Inc. with the option to renew for four additional years.  The one‐

year contract will expire on April 19, 2019.  The Facilities Division is recommending that 

the  Library  utilize  the  renewal  option  for  one  year  starting  on  April  20,  2019  and 

terminating April  19,  2020. The  amount  of  that  one‐year  renewal  contract  is  $82,080, 

which is unchanged from last year. 

 

In response to a question, the Board was advised that the contract includes all facilities, 

mowing, irrigation, spring and fall cleanup, pruning, etc. The Trustees will be asked to 



 

Page 18 of 18 
 

authorize the Executive Director to sign the contract at the March 21, 2019 Board 

meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

The study session was adjourned at 7:49 p.m.  
 

 

 

                 

Pam Anderson, Secretary 
 

 



 

1 of 4 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

March 21, 2019 

 

CALL TO ORDER – REGULAR MEETING 

The regular meeting of the Jefferson County Public Library Board of Trustees was held in the 

Lakewood Library meeting room on March 21, 2019.  Library Board of Trustees Chair, Charles 

Naumer, called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  Other Trustees present: Deborah Deal, Brian 

DeLaet and Jeanne Lomba. 

 

Trustees not present: Pam Anderson, John Bodnar and Kim Johnson 

 

Guests:  No guests. 

 

Staff present:  Donna Walker, Executive Director; Julianne Rist, Director of Libraries; Rebecca 

Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement; Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and 

Construction Projects; Bernadette Berger, Director of Information Technology; Barbara Long, 

Assistant Director of Finance and Budget; and Amber Fisher, Executive Assistant, Office of the 

Executive Director.  

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the agenda 

as presented. Seconded by Jeanne Lomba the motion passed by unanimous vote of all 

Trustees present.   

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

MOTION:  Deborah Deal moved approval of the minutes of the February 14, 2019 Study 

Session as presented.  Seconded by Brian DeLaet the minutes were approved by majority 

vote of all Trustees present. 

 

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved approval of the minutes of the February 21, 2019 Board 

meeting as presented.  Seconded by Jeanne Lomba the minutes were approved by 

majority vote of all Trustees present. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

There was no public comment. 

 

FOUNDATION REPORT 

Jo Schantz, Foundation Executive Director, provided an update to the Board on the activities of 

the Foundation. The March Madness book sale is March 22 and 23, at the Arvada Library. A 



 

2 of 4 

new fundraising event, Library Giving Day is April 10. JCLF is one of only two library 

foundations participating in Colorado.  The Spring Whale of a Used Book Sale is scheduled for 

May 31 through June 2 at the Jeffco Fairgrounds.  The Foundation Board retreat was held in 

February 22, and came up with a three‐year strategic plan. Grants received include $3,500 from 

the Golden Civic Foundation for the Golden Library’s Summer Reading program and $5,000 

from the Melvin and Elaine Wolf Foundation for Summer Reading. 

 

EXECUTIVE TEAM OPERATIONAL UPDATES 

Executive Director Update 

Donna Walker, Executive Director, provided an update to the Board. The Executive Director 

extended an invitation to a couple of Library programs.  The Evergreen Library is hosting the 

Q’s and Brews Trivia event at the Lariat Lodge Brewing Company on April 2; and the Women’s 

Empowerment Seminar on March 30, at the Edgewater Library.  The Executive Director 

attended the State of the County event on March 13. It was a good opportunity to promote 

Library services and learn about the challenges and opportunities facing the County. At the last 

Board meeting, the Trustees asked for information about programming and meeting rooms.  

That information follows: 

 

Programming percentages: 

 63% are Story Times 

 15% are other children’s programs 

 5% are teen programs 

 14% are adult programs 

 3% are all ages 

 

Space use: 

 Meeting Room Use:  In 2018, our Meeting Rooms were used over 9,000 times. Meeting 

Rooms were used by outside groups 1,759 times ( or 26% of total) by nearly 975 different 

groups. On average, they were occupied 72% of the time. 

 Study Room Use: Our study rooms were used 27,766 times. They were fully utilized at 3 

locations: Belmar, Columbine and Standley Lake. System‐wide, they were utilized (on 

average) 84% of the time. 
 
The Chair expressed appreciation to the Executive Director for everything she did to get the 

Board ready for strategic planning – it was a great way to start the process.  The Chair 

congratulated Julianne Rist for being accepted in the Measures that Matter working group. In 

response to a question, the Executive Director advised the Board that while the State of the 

County event focused on businesses and partnerships, there may be some advocacy 

opportunities for the Board. The event was sponsored by the Jeffco EDC. An email was sent to 

the Board with links to the Library’s video that was part of the presentation at the event. A link 

to the entire presentation will be sent to the Board. 

 



 

3 of 4 

 

Budget and Finance Department 

Financial Report 

Barbara Long, Assistant Director of the Finance and Budget Department, addressed the Board 

and presented information on the February financial report.  The 2019 budget has been updated 

to include carryover funds and is reflected in the capital tables.  Revenue received through the 

end of February shows property tax receipts through January but February property tax has not 

yet posted.  Expenses are on track for this time of year. Debt service payments will be made in 

June.  

 

Facilities and Construction Projects 

Landscape Contract Authorization 

Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects, addressed the Board and 

provided information about the one‐year renewal contract with Environmental Designs, Inc.    

The Library is recommending that the relationship with this vendor be continued for another 

year. In response to a question, the Board was advised that the exact amount of the contract for 

last year would be provided. Trustee DeLaet noted that the contract did include an escalation 

for renewals. It was noted that the escalation in minimum wage is reflected in the Library’s 

contracts.   

 

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to sign a one‐year renewal contract with Environmental Designs, Inc., 

in the amount of $82,080.  Seconded by Jeanne Lomba the motion passed by unanimous 

vote of all Trustees present. 

 

Strategy and Engagement 

Edgewater Naming Agreement 

Rebecca Winning, Director of Strategy and Engagement, addressed the Board and introduced 

the topic.  

 

MOTION: Deborah Deal moved that the Library Board of Trustees authorize the 

Executive Director to sign the naming agreement with Sara Cassidy to name a small 

study room at the Edgewater Library for a $5,000 donation from the Colin Cassidy 

Memorial Fund. Seconded by Brian DeLaet the motion passed by unanimous vote of all 

Trustees present. 

 

In response to a question, the Board was advised that there were twenty naming opportunities 

at Edgewater and five have been allotted. 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Trustees Elect Board Officers 



 

4 of 4 

The Chair advised the Board that the slate for Library Board officers as recommended by the 

Nominating Committee was presented in their Board report. 

 

MOTION:  Brian DeLaet moved that the Library Board of Trustees approve the slate of 

officers as presented by the Nominating Committee. Seconded by Jeanne Lomba the 

motion passed by unanimous vote of all Trustees present. 

 

Bylaws Committee report to the Board 

The Chair advised the Board that the Bylaws Committee (Trustees Pam Anderson and Deborah 

Deal) recommended no amendments to the bylaws. 

 

MOTION:  Deborah Deal moved that the Library Board of Trustees accept the 

recommendation of the Bylaws Committee to make no amendments and to adopt the 

Bylaws as presented. Seconded by Jeanne Lomba the motion passed by unanimous vote 

of all Trustees present. 

 

ENDS 

2020 Board Strategic Planning  

The Chair advised the Board that at the end of the extended Study Session, it was decided that 

the Executive Director would debrief with the Executive Team then meet with the Chair and 

Vice‐Chair to work on next steps for moving forward.  The Executive Director noted that the 

Library has started working toward the next level of strategy and will come back to the Board 

with options.  The Executive Director expressed appreciation to the Board for their engagement 

in the strategic planning process. 

 

BOARD SCHEDULE – NEXT MEETINGS 

 April 11 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Conference Room 

 April 18 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Arvada Library Meeting Room 

 May 9 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Administration Conference Room 

 May 16  ‐ Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Columbine Library Meeting Room 

 June 13 – Study Session – 5:30 pm – Pam Nissler Administration Conference Room 

 June 20 – Board Meeting – 5:30 pm – Evergreen Library Meeting Room 

 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/GENERAL INFORMATION SHARING 

The Trustees were provided with copies of JCPL’s Connect magazine. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  

The Board meeting was adjourned at 5:58 p.m. 

                 

         

        Pam Anderson, Secretary 

   



FOUNDATION REPORT 

 

 

 



APRIL 2019 – FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  1 

 

JEFFERSON COUNTY LIBRARY FOUNDATION  

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

APRIL 2019 (March 22 – April 18)  

By Jo Schantz 
             

1. Upcoming Events 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  Friday, July 26, 11:30 a.m. to 1 p.m. 

  Goosetown Event Center, 514 9th St, Golden 
 

2.  Grants and Sponsorships Update 
Grants approved/received: 

 Kerr Foundation ‐‐ $2,000 for 2019 Summer Reading (This is a new funder!) 
Grants pending: 

 Walmart Community Grants (3 local stores) ‐‐ $10,000 total for coding camps and 2019 Summer Reading  

 Madigan Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 

 FirstBank ‐‐ $2,000 for Summer Reading 

 McInnes Charitable Trust ‐‐ $10,000 for Summer Reading 

 Mabel Y. Hughes Charitable Trust ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 

 John G. Duncan Charitable Trust ‐‐ $10,000 for Summer Reading 

 Nord Family Foundation ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 
Grants denied: 

 Costco ‐‐ $5,000 for Summer Reading 
 
Sponsorships approved/received – Friends Community Partners 
 Bandimere Speedway @ $2,500 
 Pinkard Construction @ $2,000 
 Etkin Johnson Real Estate Partners @ $1,000 

 

4.  News, Meetings and Networking 
On March 26, I attended the West Metro Chamber’s Women in Business Breakfast panel discussion titled 
"Breaking Gender Stereotypes in the Workplace.” This was held at the Molly Brown Summer House, and featured 
panelists Brandi Burgei (Landlocked Ales), Malcolm Aylett (Edward Jones), and Annie Hammond (Sunflower Bank). 
 

2019 Spring Whale of a Used Book Sale 
Friends‐only Preview Night – May 30, 6‐8 p.m. 

Friday/Saturday/Sunday, May 31‐June 2 
Jeffco Fairgrounds in Golden 

Annual Volunteer Appreciation 

Luncheon and Awards Celebration 



APRIL 2019 – FOUNDATION EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  2 

 

My Leadership Golden team provided a PowerPoint presentation for our classmates on Tuesday, April 9. This was 
the capstone project for the class of 2019. Our Green Team focused on a 
way to assist homeless and unaccompanied teens at Golden High School 
by organizing a “closet” of free items (toiletries, gift cards for haircuts, 
quarters for the laundromat, etc.) located in the school counselors’ offices. We titled the initiative Project S.T.A.R. 
(Supporting Teens At Risk), and we have added three program partners who will help ensure that the inventory is 
replenished throughout the school year: The Action Center, Young Life and the Golden Rescue Fund.  
 

If you haven’t signed up yet, please be sure to join us at this year’s Good News Breakfast that 
will be held April 30 at the Jeffco Fairgrounds. As always, the breakfast starts promptly at 
6:59 a.m., and is just $15 per person (or 2 for $20). Ten local individuals and organizations 
will be honored at the event with the “Unsung Heroes” award. The Jefferson County Library 
Foundation is a Bronze sponsor for this event, and I served on the event steering committee. 
 

 As a follow‐up from the recent Board Retreat (held on February 22), I have been meeting 1‐1 with my Board 
members (either in person or via phone) to discuss the next steps as prescribed by the meeting’s outcomes. This 
month, I have had conversations with Caleb Amyot, Tim Rogers, Ron Marquez and Jamie Tafoya.  
 

In an effort to find a potential partner for a fundraising event that will be held later this year, I 
had an initial meeting with representatives from the Colorado Mountain Club on March 29. We 
are trying to come up with a noted author and outdoorsman (or woman) for an author 
presentation, and where our two organizations would share the 
costs and the proceeds. I will have more information with share 
with the Board, the Fundraising Committee and the Program & 

Events Committee in a few weeks. I am also still looking at a potential joint 
fundraising event in 2020 with the Friends of Dinosaur Ridge, and I have 
scheduled a meeting with their representatives coming up on May 8.  
 
JCPL’s Director of Libraries Julianne Rist met with JCLF staff on Thursday, April 4, to show us the design for the 
Belmar Library remodel. After the renovations, our Friends Gift & Book Shop will be moved to a more prominent 
location near the new front entrance and by the book return area. Rebecca Winning, JCPL’s Director of Strategy 
and Engagement, met with me on Wednesday, April 10, to discuss grant proposals that JCLF will be submitting to: 
the City of Wheat Ridge, the Verizon Foundation, the Buell Foundation and the Rose Community Foundation. 
 

Nancy Heister, who is the development officer for Bootstraps (a nonprofit scholarship 
organization located in Evergreen) visited our offices on April 2 for a site visit and to 
thank JCLF for its continuing support of the Rocky Mountain Literary Festival held each 
October. Bootstraps is the beneficiary of this annual event, and JCLF has been an event 
sponsor for the past three years. 

 
Our Foundation staff participated in a Volunteer Fair held at the 
Foothills Animal Shelter on Saturday, April 6, along with 16 other 
nonprofit organizations from throughout Jeffco. Through this event, we 
were able to sign up 32 interested volunteers for our Whale of a Used 
Book Sale, and as potential helpers at our warehouse in Wheat Ridge. 
 
Office Coordinator Nina Gomez and I attended the Arvada Chamber’s 68th annual Awards Luncheon on 
Wednesday, April 3. Board member and Trustee Liaison Deb Deal and I attended Jeffco Schools’ annual Elevate 
Education Gala on Friday evening, April 5, at the Arvada Center. On April 11, I participated in a seminar titled 
“How to Create a Culture of Philanthopy” that was hosted and produced by the Community First Foundation.  



Operational Updates 

 

Executive Director Update 

 

 



 

1 
 

April 2019 EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

Strategy and Planning: 

 Board of Trustees 2020 Strategic Planning. 
 Director team members participating in County strategic planning meetings. 
 2020 budget development 

Safety and Security 

 New Safety and Security coordinator starting 4/29/19. 

Community Engagement 

Paola Vilaxa, Diversity and Inclusion Services librarian, was selected as a 2018 Public Health 
Champions of the Year, for leading two programs, the Adelante Network and Sobremesa, that 
have helped build community capacity to provide more equitable, culturally appropriate services 
for Latino families. The annual Public Health Champions Awards recognize the vital 
contributions individuals, groups and organizations make toward our larger shared goal of a 
healthier, thriving Jefferson County. 

Julianne Rist, director of Libraries, and Sandie Coutts, director of People and Culture, will be 
co-presenting a breakout session at the annual IPMA-HR Western Region Conference in April. 
Recruitment Coordinator, Shylee Ackman, and Training and Development Manager, Kim Curtis 
will also attend. 

Jana Kelly, coordinator of Adult Services, is attending and presenting at the Aging in 
America conference. 

 Pam Hale, ILL Acquisitions Associate, is attending the Colorado InterLibrary Loan conference. 

11 staff are attending the Teen Literature Conference- an annual event held in Denver, 
Colorado to promote and celebrate teen literature. Melissa Taylor and Lisa Dibbern are 
presenting. 

Joyce Deming, Kelsey Ashton, Sarah Coleman, Stephanie Douglas, librarians, and 
Jennifer Kim, Evergreen/Conifer supervisor, are attending the CLIC Spring Workshop. All 
attendees are also presenting. 

In February, Jennifer Reading, Diversity and Inclusion manager, and Simone Groene-Nieto, 
coordinator of Diversity and Inclusion Services attended the PLA symposium on Social Justice 
and Public Libraries. 

Legislative Updates 

 State Library was successful in getting increase in funding to libraries by $.5million 
 Jeffco School District is in support of the full day Kindergarten legislation. Economic impact 

study and data from a study done by the US Chamber of Commerce. 



 

2 
 

JCPL Service Highlights 

Borrow A Puppy April Fools Social Media Engagement  

 Most-clicked link to JCPL’s website ever on Facebook, most engaging JCPL post ever 
on Instagram, among other impressive engagement stats 

A Free Book for Every Four-Year-Old 
Apr. 8 – 22, All Library locations 
Thanks to One Book Colorado, we're putting a free book into the hands of every four-year-old. 
Watch all three contenders being read aloud (in English and Spanish) before the winning book 
is revealed April 8. 
 
Library Giving Day 

Wednesday, Apr. 10, Visit coloradogives.org 
We're teaming up with the Jefferson County Public Library Foundation for the first ever Library 
Giving Day. Show your love for the Library by making a financial contribution! 
 
Check out this video with a JCPL setting by one of our commissioners. 

SUMMARY OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR COMMUNITY ACTIVITIES,  
April 2019 

ACTIVITY PURPOSE IMPACT 
Meeting with County Finance 
and IT director 

Relationship building. 
Orientation. 

Increased understanding of 
expectations for the Library 
and support available. 

Wheat Ridge Optimists Club 
Annual Fundraiser 

Relationship building. 
Demonstrate Library support 
for local community. 

Met some new people. 
Shared about library 
resources. Heard a library 
story. 

JCPL + JCLF Working Group  
Postponed 

Review draft agreement. 
Seek alignment. 

 

West Metro Chamber 
Diversity Mixer 
Scheduled for April 9th 

Promote Library services with 
the Asian Chamber of 
Commerce. 

 

CASA Champions for 
Children 
Scheduled for April 11th 

Learn about the work of 
CASA; Relationship building 
with community stakeholders.

 

Child and Youth Leadership 
Commission (CYLC) 

Give direction to county 
combined collaborative 

 



 

3 
 

Scheduled for April 12th management initiative. 
Approve funding requests. 

Communities that Care 
(CTC) Recognition and 
Discoveries Reception 
Scheduled for April 12th 

Demonstrate appreciation for 
the work of the CTC youth 
interns; participate as a 
member of the CTC Steering 
Committee. 

 

Jeffco Elected/Appointed 
Officials Strategic Planning 
Session 
Scheduled for April 18th 

Contribute to countywide 
strategic planning. 

 

Jeffco Bright Futures 
Roadmap Steering  
Scheduled for April 18th 

Contribute to planning for this 
early literacy initiative as a 
member of the steering 
committee . 

 

Good News Breakfast 
Scheduled for April 20th 
 

Celebrate the good things 
going on in the community 
with the community. 

 

West Metro Chamber of 
Commerce Board of 
Directors 
Scheduled for April 24th 

Participate as a board 
member with the business 
community on economic 
success initiatives. 

 

 

Response to question about cost of Landscaping contract: 

Q: What was the exact amount of the contract last year? 

A: The contract amount remained the same in 2019 as it was in 2018. $82,080. 

We’d love to have you participate in these JCPL Programs and Events 

The Big Read – Book Discussion and Art Workshops – Multiple Locations and dates, April 10 – 
30 Station Eleven by Emily St. John Mandel is our Big Read.  We’re partnering with the Arvada 
Center for the book discussions which will be led by a literature professor from Regis and art 
workshops which will be led by an art teacher from the Arvada Center.  We have 100 copies of 
the books that we are giving out for free at all locations that have book discussions/workshops 
going on.   

Preview Belmar Library Remodel Plans 

Thursday, Apr. 25, 6 - 8 p.m., Belmar Library 
Discover the innovative design and layout of the upcoming redesign. Light refreshments served.



 

 

The Surprising Reading Habits of 
Millennials 
Posted 23 Mar 2019, by 

Brendan Brown 
When teens and young adults are immersed on their smartphone, what do you think they’re doing? 

Scrolling their Instagram feed? Chatting to friends on Facebook? Watching a video on YouTube? 

There’s a good chance they’re actually reading a book. 

Forget the stereotypes we often associate with Millennials. They’re voracious readers – it’s just that 

their reading habits are different to previous generations. 

In this infographic we explore the reading preferences of Millennials and the results may surprise 

you. 

New research suggests that Millennials read more than their parents. In fact, Millennials read more 

than any other age group. 80% of young adults have read a book in any format over the last year, 

including 72% having read a print copy. 

Other surprising facts about the reading habits of Millennials include: 

 The average Millennial reads 5 books per year. 

 Millennials are more likely than any other age group to visit public libraries. 

 Contrary to popular belief, they will prefer print books to digital ones. 

What does this mean? Besides upending a few misconceptions about Millennials, the book industry 

is also probably in a healthier state than we give it credit for. Demand for new books is actually being 

driven by younger readers. 

Book publishing statistics back this up. Although book sales in traditional bricks and mortar stores 

have been declining for years, the overall trend industry trend is positive. The worldwide publishing 

industry was worth around $111 billion in 2018 and has been growing about 1% annually for the last 

5 years 
 

Check out this infographic for more details 



Operational Updates 

 

Finance Department 

 

 

 

 



 
 

to: Donna Walker, Executive Director 

from: Barbara Long, Assistant Director for Finance & Budget 

re: Finance Monthly Report 

Date: April 11, 2019   

A. Budget to Actual Tables 

The Budget to Actual Tables for March 2019 will be forwarded before the meeting and will 
include the analysis discussion.  

 

 



 
 

to: Donna Walker, Executive Director 

from: Barbara Long, Assistant Director for Finance & Budget 

re: Finance Monthly Report - Budget to Actual Tables 

date: April 18, 2019   

A. Budget to Actual Tables 

The Budget to Actual Tables for February are attached. Property tax revenue includes 
February’s receipts. Most property tax revenue is received between February and July, so 
the next few months should include significant receipts. Investment income is low because 
it does not include earnings allocated to the Library fund from the County’s pooled 
investments, which is the bulk of budgeted revenue. County accounting staff post the 
allocation of investment pool earnings; in 2018, earnings were first posted to the Library 
fund after the first quarter, then monthly for the rest of the year.  

Library Foundation support of $56,824 was received through the end of March. In-kind 
support provided to the Foundation by the Library through the end of March is valued at 
$17,503 (Ratio 3.25:1). 

2019 expenses are on track for this time of year but look lower in some areas because of 
timing. Expenses for supplies will increase with the summer reading season and charges 
for cost allocation and other County charges will catch up in subsequent months to reflect 
actual expenses through the first quarter.    

 



Sources of Funds 4.000 4.500

Revenues
Taxes    
  Property Tax - Operating 35,613,839$    35,191,405$   40,428,530$   14,047,502$   (26,381,028)$   -65%
  Property Tax - Capital 1,673,653        1,655,348      1,949,693      662,193         (1,287,500)       -66%
Total Taxes 37,287,492$    36,846,753$   42,378,223$   14,709,695$   (27,668,528)$   -65%

Federal & State Grants 133,000$         130,042$        130,000$        128,084$        (1,916)$            -1%
Fines & Fees 530,850           495,864         492,731         114,841         (377,890)          -77%
Other Revenue 329,400           924,514         495,000         121,576         (373,424)          -75%
Total Other Revenues 993,250$         1,550,420$     1,117,731$     364,501$        (753,230)$        -67%

Sub Total Revenues 38,280,742$    38,397,173$   43,495,954$   15,074,196$   (28,421,758)$   -65%
Fund Balance Activity

Transfer from FB - Capital Projects 3,946,044        3,248,054      -                      NA
Transfer to Fund Balance -                   1,365,309      -                 6,152,523      NA
Total Sources of Funds 42,226,786$    37,031,864$    46,744,008$    8,921,673$      (37,822,335)$   -81%

Uses of Funds

Operating Expenditures

Salaries & Employee Benefits
Salaries  $    13,566,138 $    13,365,746 $    14,766,591 $      3,474,505  $  (11,292,086) -76%
Benefits          4,213,500         3,988,172         4,818,086         1,017,619        (3,800,467) -79%

Total Salaries & Benefits 17,779,638$    $    17,353,918 $    19,584,677 $      4,492,124  $  (15,092,553) -77%
Library Books & Materials  $      8,273,586 $      8,170,418 $      8,139,065 $      2,567,773  $    (5,571,292) -68%
Supplies          1,470,059         1,283,607         1,587,418            186,110        (1,401,308) -88%
Vehicles             140,000            104,805                     -                       -                        -   NA
Other Services & Charges          4,840,532         3,407,329         4,589,726         1,235,790        (3,353,936) -73%
Internal Transactions /Cost Allocation          1,748,514         1,776,357         1,886,026            241,817        (1,644,209) -87%

Total Operating Expenditures 34,252,329$    $    32,096,434 $    35,786,912 $      8,723,614  $  (27,063,298) -76%

Financing & Debt Service  $      1,486,667 $      1,486,667 $      1,448,432 $                  -    $    (1,448,432) -100%

Capital Projects 6,487,790$      $      3,448,762 $      9,508,664 $         198,059  $    (9,310,605) -98%

Total Uses of Funds 42,226,786$    $    37,031,864 $    46,744,008 $      8,921,673  $  (37,822,335) -81%

TABLE 1
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET
TOTAL FUND SUMMARY

2018 Actual
2019 Amended 

Budget
Budget to 
Actual %

YTD Actual 
3/31/2019

Sources and Uses of Funds
$ Variance 

2019 Budget
2018 Amended 

Budget



Beginning Fund Balance 17,491,968$      18,164,234$   18,164,234$   19,529,543$    19,529,543$   

Revenues 36,607,089$       36,741,825$    41,546,261$    14,412,003$    41,546,261$    
Capital Funding 1,673,653           1,655,348        1,949,693        662,193           1,949,693        
Total Revenues 38,280,742$      38,397,173$   43,495,954$   15,074,196$    43,495,954$   

Expenditures
Operating Expenditures 34,252,329$    32,096,434$    35,786,912$    8,723,614$      35,786,912$    
Debt Service 1,486,667        1,486,667        1,448,432        -                  1,448,432        
Capital Projects 6,487,790        3,448,762        9,508,664        198,059           9,508,664        

Total Expenditures 42,226,786$      37,031,864$   46,744,008$   8,921,673$      46,744,008$   

Increase/(Decrease) in Fund Balance (3,946,044)$      $     1,365,309 $    (3,248,054)  $     6,152,523 $    (3,248,054)

Ending Fund Balance 13,545,924$       19,529,543$    14,916,180$    25,682,066$    16,281,489$    

2018 Budget
2019 Amended 

Budget

16% - Current Year Budgeted Revenues 6,124,919$         6,959,353$      
9% - Current Year Budgeted Revenues - Uncertainty 3,445,267           3,914,636        

Total Minimum F/B Reserve Requirements (FLOOR)  $        9,570,186 10,873,989$    

50% of Current Year Budgeted Revenues 19,140,371$       21,747,977$    
Total Maximum F/B Reserve Requirements 
(CEILING)

 $      19,140,371 21,747,977$    

Above/(Below) Minimum (FLOOR) 3,975,739$        4,042,192$     
Above/(Below) Maximum (CEILING) (5,594,447)$       (6,831,797)$     

Fund Balance Policy Calculation

Year End 
Projected 

Fund Balance

TABLE 2A
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

FUND BALANCE SUMMARY
2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

YTD Actual 
3/31/2019

2018 Actual
2019 Amended 

Budget
2018 Amended 

Budget



Sources of Funds

Revenues
Taxes
  Property Taxes 35,518,639$    35,130,173$   41,376,815$   14,053,209$   41,376,815$    -$                
  Delinquent Taxes 96,167             40,938           105,503         -                  105,503           -                 
  Prior Year Cancellations (27,635)            -                 (80,608)          -                  (80,608)            -                 
  Urban Renewal -                  -                 (996,510)        -                  (996,510)          -                 
  Penalties & Interest 26,668             20,294           23,330           (5,707)            23,330             -                 
Total Taxes 35,613,839$    35,191,405$   40,428,530$   14,047,502$   40,428,530$    -$                

Federal & State Grants 133,000$         130,042$        130,000$        128,084$        130,000$         -$                
Library Fines 395,800           367,082         365,000         85,794           365,000           -                 
Charges for Services 135,050           128,782         127,731         29,047           127,731           -                 
Investment Income 241,400           592,860         322,000         1,044             322,000           -                 
Library Foundation 30,000             188,415         85,000           56,824           85,000             -                 
E Rate Revenue 58,000             107,068         88,000           49,910           88,000             -                 
Other Revenue -                  36,170           -                 13,797           -                      -                 
Total Revenues 36,607,089$    36,741,825$   41,546,261$   14,412,003$   41,546,261$    -$                
    

Uses of Funds

Operating Expenditures
Salaries & Employee Benefits

Salaries  $    12,268,624 $    11,373,583 $    13,872,155 3,009,816$     13,872,155$    -$                
Awards & Bonuses             120,000                       -            125,000 -                      125,000           -                     
Termination Pay                      -              158,188                       - 11,032           -                      -                     
Temporary Salaries          2,063,934         1,832,115         2,080,360 452,766         2,080,360        -                     
Overtime               14,130                1,860                7,130 891                 7,130               -                     
Vacancy Savings           (900,550)                     -         (1,318,054) (1,318,054)       
Benefits          4,213,500         3,988,172         4,818,086 1,017,619      4,818,086        -                     

Total Salaries & Benefits 17,779,638$    $    17,353,918 $    19,584,677 $      4,492,124  $    19,584,677 $                    - 
Library Books & Materials  $      6,907,000 $      6,859,918 $      6,768,000 $      1,583,387  $      6,768,000 -$                
Library Computer Materials          1,234,706         1,176,240         1,173,185            865,548 1,173,185        -                     
Library Periodicals             131,880            134,260            197,880            118,838 197,880           -                     
Sub-Total Library Collections          8,273,586         8,170,418         8,139,065         2,567,773          8,139,065                     -   
Supplies  $      1,470,059 $      1,283,607 $      1,587,418 $         186,110  $      1,587,418 -$                
Other Services & Charges          4,840,532         3,407,329         4,589,726         1,235,790 4,589,726        -                     
Vehicles             140,000            104,805                     -   -                      -                      -                     
Direct Internal Charges             140,762            173,788            196,182              21,171 196,182           -                     
Indirect Cost Allocation             929,085            929,085         1,067,744                     -   1,067,744        -                     
Intra County Transactions             678,667            673,484            622,100            220,645 622,100           -                     

Total Supplies and Other 16,472,691$    $    14,742,517 $    16,202,235 $      4,231,490  $    16,202,235 $                  -   

Total Uses of Funds 34,252,329$    32,096,434$   35,786,912$   8,723,614$     35,786,912$    -$                

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET
OPERATING EXPENDITURES

TABLE 3

2018 Actual
2019 Amended 

Budget
Projected Year-

End 2019
YTD Actual 
3/31/2019

Variance 2019 
Budget

Sources and Uses of Funds
2018 Amended 

Budget



2018 Budget

Principal - Arvada (2005-2024)  $        528,501 $        528,501 $        539,667  $        539,667 -$                 
Interest - Arvada (2005-2024)              94,823             94,823             82,192              82,192 -                  
Principal  - Refunding Series 2013            608,264           608,264           608,264            608,264 -                  
Interest - Refunding Series 2013              91,544             91,544             61,695              61,695 -                  
Principal - COP - Capital Projects            142,143           142,143           142,143            142,143 -                  
Interest - COP - Capital Projects              21,392             21,392             14,472              14,472 -                  

Total Debt Service  $     1,486,667 $     1,486,667 $     1,448,432 $                  -    $     1,448,432 -$                

Arvada
Total Issue $8,886,000
Term 2005-2024
Use - Arvada Library Facility

Build America Bonds 
Total Issue $6,293,000
Original Term 2011-2020
Refunding Term 2013-2024
Use - Lakewood HVAC

Energy Conservation
Book Sorters
Library Service Center Remodel

Certificates of Participation (COP)
Total Issue $995,000
Term 2014-2020
Use - Belmar Roof Replacement

Columbine HVAC
Columbine Parking Lot
Standley Lake Parking Lot

Debt Service

JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
DEBT SERVICE DETAIL

2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

TABLE 4

 2018 Actual  2019 Budget
Variance 2019 

Budget
Sources and Uses of Funds

YTD Actual 
3/31/2019

Projected Year 
End 2019



Sources of Funds
Property Tax - Capital - 4.5% 1,673,653$      1,655,348$  1,949,693$  1,949,693$  662,193$     1,949,693$      -$                   
Transfer from FB - Edgewater Library Project 2,600,000        2,600,000   -              -              -                 -                 
Transfer from FB - Capital Expenses 1,346,044        1,346,044   1,929,890   3,248,054   3,248,054       -                 
Total Sources of Funds 5,619,697$      5,601,392$  3,879,583$  5,197,747$  662,193$     5,197,747$      -$                

Uses of Funds

ARM-01 Capital Maintenance 370,000$         $     348,088 200,000$     229,559$     24,916$       229,559$       -$                   
ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment 36,000                      17,724 36,000        36,000        14,372        36,000           -                 
ARM-03 Computer Replacement Plan 250,000                  163,168 250,000      250,000      56,895        250,000         -                 
ARM-04 Book Sorter Replacement 350,000                    88,954         250,000 250,000      -              250,000         -                 
ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement 351,650                  210,774 200,000      200,000      9,079          200,000         -                 

16-10 Intranet/Document Management 171,282$         $       57,920 $               -   $               -   -$             -$               -$                
16-13 III Database Server -                              5,560                  -                    -   -              -                 -                 
16-14 High Availability Internet Redundancy 36,000                             -             36,000           72,000 -              72,000           -                 

17-01 Evergreen HVAC Rebuild 57,536$           $       57,536 $               -   $               -   -$             -$               -$                
17-02 Entry Door Replacement 18,600                      29,605                  -                    -   -              -                 -                 
17-11 Long-Range Facilities Master Plan 30,960                      30,960                  -                    -   -              -                 -                 
17-13 Standley Lake Outdoor Learning Env. 45,200                      20,735                  -             24,465 -              24,465           -                 

18-02 Lakewood Fence Replacement 55,000$           $               -   $               -   $               -   -$             -$                -$                 
18-04 Lakewood Admin Restroom Remodel 48,000                             -                    -                    -   -               -                  -                   
18-05 Evergreen Parking Lot 125,000                           -                    -           125,000 -               125,000          -                   
18-06 Sorter Replacement 0 2 sites 500,000                           -                    -                    -   -               -                  -                   
18-07 LSC Garage & Loading Dock Planning 10,000                             -           150,000         150,000 -               150,000          -                   
18-08 Bookmobile Replacement Sinking Fund 200,000                           -           200,000         400,000 -               400,000          -                   

19-01 Standley Lake Clerestory Roof -$                 $               -   $        35,000 $        35,000 -$             35,000$          -$                 
19-02 Document Management System -                                   -             60,000         160,000 -               160,000          -                   
Multi-Year Construction Projects
16-16 Columbine Library Remodel 798,342$         $     126,270 $               -   $               -   -$             -$                -$                 
17-07 Edgewater Library 2,684,220            2,195,273                  -           549,333 40,184         549,333          -                   
18-01 Belmar Library Remodel 350,000                    96,194      6,423,500      6,677,307 52,613         6,677,307       -                   
19-03 South County Library -                           350,000         350,000 -               350,000          
Total Capital Projects  $     6,487,790 $  3,448,762 $   8,190,500 $   9,508,664 $    198,059  $     9,508,664 $                  -   

Beginning Balance -$                 -$            200,000$     200,000$     -$             -$               
Source -                   200,000      200,000      200,000      
Use -                   -             -              -              -                 
Balance -$                 200,000$     400,000$     400,000$     -$             -$               

2016 Projects

2017 Projects

2018 Projects

Bookmobile Sinking Fund Reserve

2019 Projects

Annual Replacement & Maintenance Program (ARM)

Variance 2019 
Budget

TABLE 5
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
2019 ACTUAL TO BUDGET

Sources and Uses of Funds 2018 Actual 2019 Budget
 YTD Actual 
3/31/2019 

 Projected 
Year End 2019 

2018 Amended 
Budget

2019 
Amended 
Budget



ARM-01 Capital Maintenance 229,559$         24,916$           49,697$            74,613$           154,946$         
ARM-02 Furniture & Equipment 36,000             14,372             -                        14,372             21,628             
ARM-03 Computer Replacement Plan 250,000           56,895             -                        56,895             193,105           
ARM-04 Book Sorter Replacement 250,000           -                      -                        -                      250,000           
ARM-05 IT Infrastructure Replacement 200,000           9,079               96,816              105,895           94,105             
16-14 High Availability Internet Redundancy              72,000                     -   -                        -                      72,000             
17-13 Standley Lake Outdoor Learning Envir.              24,465                     -   3,307                3,307               21,158             
18-05 Evergreen Parking Lot            125,000                     -   -                        -                      125,000           
18-07 LSC Garage & Loading Dock            150,000                     -   -                        -                      150,000           
18-08 Bookmobile Replacement Sinking Fund            400,000                      -   -                        -                      400,000           
19-01 Standley Lake Clerestory Roof              35,000                      -   -                        -                      35,000             
19-02 Document Management System            160,000                      -   -                        160,000           

Multi-Year Projects Construction Projects
17-07 Edgewater Library 549,333           40,184             78,378              118,562           430,771           
18-01 Belmar Library Remodel 6,677,307        52,613             1,313,944         1,366,557        5,310,751        
19-03 South County Library 350,000           -                      -                        350,000           
Total Capital Projects 9,508,664$      198,059$         1,542,142$       1,740,201$      7,768,463$      

 Remaining 
Budget 

TABLE 6
JEFFERSON COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
2019 BUDGET TO ACTUAL

Project
2019 

Amended 
Budget 

 YTD Actual
3/31/19 

YTD 
Encumbrances 

3/31/19 

 YTD Total 
Actual + Enc 



$160,000
2017 Phase I Planning Budget - Board approved transfer of $80k from Project 17-12 Current 
Year Facility Expansion to Edgewater Project - Sept 21, 2017

2,600,000         2018 Tenant Finish Budget
$2,760,000 Total Project Budget

Contracts

$117,803 Wember - Owners Rep 04/10/2017

94,750              Humpries Poli - Architect 07/27/2017

$212,553

$160,000 2017 Budget 

$89,280 2017 Actual
$70,720 Remaining 2017 Budget

$2,600,000 Board of Trustee approved the 2018 Proposed Budget at the June 15, 2017 Board Mtg.

$122,631 Board of Trustees approved $122,631 in project carryover at the Feb 15, 2018 Board Mtg.

($51,911) May Budget adjustment: project carryover did not include 2017 accrued expenses

$13,500 May Budget adjustment: Edgewater Family Place 

$2,684,220 2018 Project Budget

2,195,273         2018 Actual Expenses

$488,947 Remaining 2018 Budget

$549,333 Board of Trustees approved $549,333 in project carryover at the Feb 14, 2019 Board Mtg.

($60,386) Pending Budget adjustment for retainage accrued to 2018

$488,947 2019 Project Budget

$40,184 2019 Actual Expenses

$448,763 Remaining 2019 Budget

2019 Timeline

2018 Timeline

In collaboration with the City of Edgewater, JCPL will provide a new 10,000 sq ft library.  The City of Edgewater 
will pay for the land and the construction of their new Civic Center.   JCPL will provide the tenant finishes of the 
Library space and operate the new Library.  This library will align with JCPL's vision of a 21st Century Library.  

Edgewater Library Remodel
Project to Date - Budget to Actual

Project Description

Project Budget

2017 Timeline

March 31, 2019



Design & 
Engineering

Owner's 
Requirements 

(Rep) Construction

Permits, Utility 
Fees, Impact 

Fees & Resource 
Rights FFE Technology

Contingencies & 
Escalation Total

Budget 210,900$              205,403$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             282,801$             2,773,500$             
Revised Budget 210,900$              205,403$              1,343,500$            23,693$              319,500$             387,703$             282,801$             2,773,500$             

2017 Actual
May -$                      4,480$                  -$                       -$                    -$                     -$                     -$                     4,480$                    
June 2,953                    2,953                      
July 1,316                    1,316                      
Aug 978                       978                         
Sept 5,104                    6,881                    11,985                    
Oct 4,965                    5,498                    3,368                   13,830                    
Nov 1,346                   1,346                      
Dec 34,116                  17,795                  480                      52,391                    

Total 2017 44,185                  39,902                  -                         -                      4,714                   -                       480                      89,280                    

2018 Actual
Jan -                        -                        -                         -                      -                       -                       -                       -                          
Feb 4,361                    576                       204,000                 208,937                  
March 32,540                  8,351                    40,891                    
April 7,079                    11,840                 18,919                    
May 5,034                    3,761                    4,943                     13,738                    
June 5,796                    29,421                 35,217                    
July 11,334                  12,689                  128,068                 32,088                 184,179                  
August 10,687                  203,334                 1,779                   215,801                  
September 2,366                    5,545                    363,443                 3,281                   9,064                   383,698                  
October 2,217                    6,762                    260,515                 3,150                   5,333                   277,977                  
November 2,292                    11,377                  149,355 109,731 74,329                 347,085                  
December 2,871                    2,458                    194,612                 30,352 238,539 468,831                  

Total 2018 63,016                  75,081                  1,508,270              -                      209,802               339,105               -                       2,195,273               

2019 Actual
Jan (60,386)                  4,686                   (55,700)                   
Feb 14,720                 14,720                    
March 1,137                     80,027                 81,164                    
April -                          
May -                          
June -                          
July -                          

Total 2018 -                        -                        (59,249)                  -                      99,433                 -                       -                       40,184                    

Total Expenditures 107,201                114,982                1,449,021              -                      313,949               339,105               480                      2,324,737               

Remaining Budget 103,699$              90,421$                (105,521)$              23,693$              5,551$                 48,598$               282,321$             448,763$                

Edgewater Library Project
Project - Budget to Actual

Inception-to-Date
March 31, 2019





Operational Updates 

Public Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



   

- 1 - 
 

Belmar Library Renovation –  Progress Reporting 

 
     

DATE:  April 2019     

 

I. PROJECT TEAM:  
 

Jefferson County Public Library        Owner 
JCPL Steering Committee        Advisory Group 
NV5               Owner’s Representative  
HDR              Architect/Design Team 
Fransen Pittman          General Contractor  

 
 
II. PROJECT PROGRESS / STATUS: 

 
A. Goals & Objectives identified by JCPL & the Belmar Community, through Community Meetings & Staff 

interviews include: 

 Safety & Security 
 Welcoming Atmosphere 
 Inclusive 
 Connection to the Outdoors 
 Promotes Lifelong Learning 
 Enhanced Wayfinding & Organization 
 Sustainability 
 Convenience Factor 

 
B. HDR has been working closely with JCPL Steering Committee to develop Schematic Design Drawings 

that meet the goals and objectives set out by JCPL and Belmar Community. 
 

C. Design highlights from SD Phase include modified entry to library, interior layouts & adjacencies 
identified, canopy design, sorter positioning & layout, exterior site modifications to address traffic 
calming & safety. 
 

D. Initial meetings with City of Lakewood and West Metro Fire have been had to communicate upcoming 
renovation and changes. 

 
III. CURRENT PROJECT OPPORTUNTIES &/OR RISKS: 

 
A. Due to the nature of early design process, project scope items are being identified as “Add Alternates” 

to assist with keeping project on budget during the pricing exercises. 
 

B. Consideration of Belmar remaining open or closed during construction is being carefully considered.  
 

C. Sorter design is being vetted closely between JCPL and various AMH design‐build firms. 



   

- 2 - 
 

 
D. Fire Proofing of structural steel – HDR met with Building Department staff and there are no initial “red 

flags” that fireproofing will be required. 
 
IV. UPCOMING KEY DECISIONS: 

 
A. Approval of Schematic Design; to allow continued design through Design Development. 

 

V. MEETINGS: 
 
A. Weekly, Thursdays @ 1:00pm: Design meetings are being held and attended by JCPL Steering 

Committee, NV5, HDR and Fransen Pittman.  

B. April 25th, 2019 @ 6:30‐8:00pm: Belmar Community Meeting 

 

VI. MILESTONES PROJECTED FOR NEXT PERIOD: 
 
A. Begin Design Development Phase 

B. Select Automated Material Handling (AMH) Firm to design, build and install sorter 

 

 



Belmar Redesign



Schematic Design  
Julianne Scherer, HDR

• COMMUNITY & STAFF ENGAGEMENT RESULTS
• GUIDING PRINCIPLES
• SITE DESIGN
• BUILDING DESIGN



C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
P

rio
rit

ie
s 

A
ct

iv
ity

 R
es

ul
ts



C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
G

ui
di

ng
 P

rin
ci

pl
es



C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t
G

ui
di

ng
 P

rin
ci

pl
es



S
ite

 D
es

ig
n

S
ite

 P
la

n

A

B

B

C

D D D

E F

G

G

J
II

A. Traffic Calming

B. Reading Deck

C. Staff Area

D. Walkways

E. Canopy

F. Bike Racks

G. Enhanced Planting Area

H. ADA Parking

I. Entry Plaza

J. Drop-off Zone



S
ite

 D
es

ig
n

La
nd

sc
ap

e 
P

la
n

A. Traffic Calming

B. Reading Deck

C. Planting

D. Canopy

E. Bike Racks

F. Entry Plaza

G. Drop-off Zone

H. Benches

I. Swivel Seat

A

B

D

EF

GG

C

C

C

H
H

H H H



B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
ig

n
C

an
op

y



B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
ig

n
E

xi
st

in
g 

&
 S

ch
em

at
ic

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ro

gr
am

 C
om

pa
ris

on



B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
ig

n
F

lo
or

 P
la

n



B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

es
ig

n
F

lo
or

 P
la

n



Questions



 

2020 STRATEGIC PLANNING                                                                             ALTERNATIVE SERVICES DELIVERY                             

1 
 

 

Alternative Library Services Delivery 

Brief Summary 

In April, 2018 the presentation of a comprehensive Facility Master Plan for the Library 
generated excitement and questions about a concept called “Alternative Service 
Delivery.” At that time, Library staff promised a response to the Board about what 
Alternative Services are and how the Library is responding to this concept now and for 
the future.  

From there we went on a journey of exploration and discovery that created what we 
believe to be a new idea in public libraries around alternative service delivery. A white 
paper on this concept is in development for future publication. For the Board, we’re 
bringing forward what we think is most germane to your understanding and decision-
making. 

What follows is an outline of the information we’ll be sharing at the April Board Meeting. 

We have an expanding understanding about what we mean by Alternative Services that 
we’d like to share, including: 

• How they support our mission  

• A vision for Alternative Services 

• A summary of current Outreach and Alternative Services 

• Future trends in Alternative Service Delivery and 

• Next steps for JCPL 

The Vision: 

Expand and innovate access to library services and resources beyond physical library 
locations. 

• Respond to community needs 

• Address barriers to access  

• Expand into new markets 

 

 



 

2020 STRATEGIC PLANNING                                                                             ALTERNATIVE SERVICES DELIVERY                             

2 
 

 

Outreach and Alternative Services 

Since they began, libraries have offered some form of alternative services. Often called 
Outreach Services, the goal is to address and eliminate barriers to access. 

Through alternative services we provide extreme equity of access without regard to 
demographics, socioeconomics, age or infirmity, physical or mental disability, time, 
distance, lack of transportation or any other thing that might make it hard for people to 
get to a library.  

A relatively new area for alternative services is responding to emerging market 
conditions and evolving customer demands in order to expand library services into new 
markets.  

Patrons increasingly cite convenience as a barrier to library usage, and so we are 
looking for ways to fit the library into our patrons’ increasingly busy lives. More and 
more people are accessing services online, through our digital service vendors -- and 
new technologies are evolving every day that might support new alternative services. 

The Data 

As we sought to evaluate alternative services, we did a comprehensive literature review 
to see trends in our profession. The white paper includes more detailed analysis. For 
our purposes, the Ottowa study cited below is a useful summary of what we learned. 

The Ottawa Public Library (Yarrow, 2018) gathered input from 140 public libraries in 
Canada and the U.S. on alternative services inform their long-term planning. Their 
research showed that: 

• 2/3 of them used home delivery services, which also included lobby stops and 
mini libraries.  

• 1/3 of them used bookmobiles 

• 29% used depots or remote collections 

• 18% utilized pop-up or storefront Libraries  

• 16% delivered books by mail, and 

• 14% delivered services through automated kiosks and/or lockers 

JCPL has introduced a number of these services here, and are evaluating others for 
2020 and beyond. 



 

2020 STRATEGIC PLANNING                                                                             ALTERNATIVE SERVICES DELIVERY                             

3 
 

 

The Present 

Current outreach at JCPL is targeted to populations with socioeconomic and 
demographic barriers. They often address underserved or high-risk populations and rely 
on longstanding partnerships with Jeffco Schools, economic development organizations 
and others. They also support shared community outcomes -- such as kindergarten 
readiness, grade-level proficiencies, support for economic development, community 
engagement and aging well. 

One example of outreach services is the library working throughout Jefferson County 
with the goal of helping every child in Jefferson County be ready to read when they 
enter kindergarten, and ensuring that students achieve grade-level proficiencies on 
schedule.  

Our staff take story times to Headstart and preschool locations and targeted daycare 
locations throughout Jefferson County. In 2018, they hosted more than 1500 Outreach 
Story times for more than 35,000 participants. 

They also support grade-level proficiencies through participation in Jeffco’s Summer of 
Early Learning – or JSEL - initiative. Every summer, they partner with Jeffco Schools, 
the Jeffco Schools Foundation, Mile High United Way and the Federal Corporation for 
National and Community Service to bring literacy experiences, Story Times and 
Summer Reading to at-risk students.   

Another example of JCPL outreach is staff going to middle schools and high schools 
throughout the year, to promote library resources and create connections with our teen 
librarians. 

Our programming and connections to Chambers of commerce and other economic 
development organizations is another great example of outreach to meet community 
goals. Our Book-A-Librarian Services provide personalized help at the patron’s location 
of choice. 

JCPL outreach staff provides library materials, story times and technology access to 
homeless and at-risk populations at The Family Winter Center, Archway Housing and 
Services and other community partner locations. They also provide outreach to Spanish 
populations, by promoting library resources and services to targeted locations and 
events and in partnership with other community agencies. 

Our Bookmobile visits senior centers throughout Jefferson County. It also visits 
locations for the incarcerated.  



 

2020 STRATEGIC PLANNING                                                                             ALTERNATIVE SERVICES DELIVERY                             

4 
 

 

This year, we’re using our new Cargo Van to deliver library materials to senior centers 
and set up a browsing library inside the facility, to provide access to those who may not 
be able to access the bookmobile. 

Our home delivery service brings Library resources to patrons who have a medical 
condition that prevents them from getting to a Library. We use mail delivery to reach 
homebound patrons in more remote areas of the county.  

Finally, we’re using our bookmobile to bring services to South County every Saturday. 

In 2019, we’re- 

• Piloting lobby stops with two senior centers 

• Purchasing a new bookmobile 

• Installing a book return – not at a library - to supplement bookmobile service in 
South County 

• Expanding mail delivery to address time and distance barriers in addition to our 
current criteria; and 

• Delivering alternative services to provide gap services while the Belmar Library is 
closed for construction.  

The Future 

As we transition to the idea of expanding into new markets, we look to geographic 
challenges that may keep Jeffco residents from visiting a Library. 

Our Master Facilities plan has given us a good roadmap for expanding or building 
facilities to meet the space and proximity needs of Jeffco residents. We also use 
Alternative Services to complement our physical libraries.  

Further expansion into new markets is our approach to alternative services for the 
future. Evolving technologies are creating new self-service options, including lockers 
and vending machine models.  

An exciting emerging trend is the 24/7 library – a staffless, automated, self-service 
library. There are more than 200 staffless libraries currently operating in the UK and the 
U S, with proven success. 

 

 



 

2020 STRATEGIC PLANNING                                                                             ALTERNATIVE SERVICES DELIVERY                             

5 
 

 

Conclusion 

Community goals and expectations drive the choices we make in delivery of library 
services outside library walls.  Library outreach service seeks to fill gaps in mainstream 
library service through targeted focus on community outcomes, thus there are different 
types of outreach services, depending on the desired outcome.  

In contrast, alternative library services delivery (ASD) is intended to reach new markets 
by expanding the business model of traditional library services, diversifying services 
beyond physical spaces and digital environments, addressing the growing demand for 
convenience, and promoting other library offerings in its physical and digital spaces.  

Both types of service are born of the desire of libraries to meet patrons at their point of 
need and establish the value of the library in their lives now and for the future. 

 



Operational Updates 

 

Facilities & Construction Projects 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
TO:  Donna Walker, Executive Director 
 
FROM:  Steve Chestnut, Director of Facilities and Construction Projects 
 
DATE:  April 18, 2019 
 
RE:  Library Carpet & Upholstery Cleaning Amendment Authorization Memo 
 
 

In May of 2016, we entered into a contract with Kleen Tech Service Corp. to provide carpet and 

upholstery cleaning service at our libraries.  With the size increase of our new Edgewater library over the 

previous location, our contract for carpet and upholstery cleaning services needs to be amended.  This 

amendment is necessary for the 8500 square foot increase in carpet as well as more upholstery 

cleaning.  

My recommendation is for the Board of Trustees to continue our use of Kleen Tech Service Corp and to 

authorize you to amend the contract with an adjustment of an additional $5996.00 annually to 

accommodate the increase in scope of the original contract. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda - April 18, 2019 
	Minutes - March 14, 2019 Study Session
	Minutes - March 21, 2019 Board Meeting
	Foundation Report
	Executive Director Report
	Operational Updates - Finance Report
	2020 Budget Planning Calendar
	Belmar Library Progress Report
	Belmar Schematic Design
	Alternative Library Services Delivery - Summary
	Carpet Cleaning Contract Amendment
	Combined Financial Report - March for 04-18-19 Board Meeting.pdf
	Board Report March Financials 2019
	Table 1 - March 2019 Tables
	Table 2 - March 2019 Tables
	Table 3 - March 2019 Tables
	Table 4 - March 2019 Tables
	Table 5 - March 2019 Tables
	Table 6 - March 2019 Tables
	Edgewater Construction Budget March 2019


